ARGUMENT

I.  Nye suggests that Thurlow, Scott and Rice are in harmony with one

another and that there is no schism amongst the circuits.
Nothing could be further from the truth. Nye did not address the most

recent United States Supreme Court case in its brief which clarifies, to some
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extent, the state of the law.

Riley v. California, 573 U.S. 373, 374, 134 S. Ct. 2473, 2477-78 (2014).

Three related precedents govern the extent to which officers may
search property found on or near an arrestee. Chimel v.
California, 395 U. S. 752, 89 S. Ct. 2034, 23 L. Ed. 2d 685,
requires that a search incident to arrest be limited to the area
within the arrestee's immediate control, where it is justified by
the interests in officer safety and in preventing evidence
destruction. In United States v. Robinson, 414 U. S. 218, 94 S.
Ct. 467, 38 L. Ed. 2d 427, the Court applied the Chimel analysis
to a search of a cigarette pack found on the arrestee's person. It
held that the risks identified in Chimel are present in all custodial
arrests, 414 U. S., at 235, 94 S. Ct. 467, 38 L. Ed. 2d 427, even
when there is no specific concern about the loss of evidence or
the threat to officers in a particular case, id., at 236, 94 S. Ct.
467, 38 L. Ed. 2d 427. The trilogy concludes with Arizona v.
Gant, 556 U. S. 332, 129 S. Ct. 1710, 173 L. Ed. 2d 485, which
permits searches of a car where the arrestee is unsecured and
within reaching distance of the passenger compartment, or where
it is reasonable to believe that evidence of the crime of arrest
might be found in the vehicle, id., at 343, 129 S. Ct. 1710, 173 L.

Ed. 2d 485. Pp. 381-385, 134 S. Ct. 2473, 189 L. Ed. 2d, at 439-
441.

What now follows, via the likes of Camou, Byrd and Knapp previously cited
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in the opening brief, is the debate over the “time of the arrest” and “time of
the search” analysis. Items, bags or containers of any sort on or near an
arrestee will always be reduced to police control in order to be searched,
such that unless the officer is doing the unthinkable, telling the person they
are under arrest and then just huddling together with the defendant while
searching the bag or purse, then in reality there is no search incident to arrest
exception as it pertains to removable bags or containers from a person.

United States v. Garcia, 605 F.2d 349, 355, (7" Cir. 1979); United States v.

Fleming, 677 F.2d 602 (7" Cir. 1982). This is not supported by the above
case law. To take such a position requires reversal of Robinson, but the
Supreme Court did not do that in Gant, which the “time of the search”
proponents point to as the reason why they have ruled the way they have. A
bag in their hands or at their feet cannot be searched, but a cigarette package
in their pocket can? What is the difference and how is an officer supposed

to know?

The Rice v. State, 113 Nev. 425 (1997) Nevada Supreme Court

decision, preceded Camou, Byrd and Knapp by 15 plus years, and made no

such “time of arrest” or “time of search” analysis, neither did they cite to or
address Thurlow or Scott. While Thurlow via the “substantially

contemporaneous with the arrest” language suggests that it adopts the “time
-
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of the arrest” avenue, it appears that Rice without saying so, would be
adopting the “time of the search” reasoning. However, there is no

overruling of Thurlow or Scott in the Rice decision. Under Thurlow, the

search of the backpack in Rice should have been allowed as it was in the
immediate vicinity and was searched immediately after the arrest and once
placing the defendant in the car, which is as contemporaneous as it gets
without searching the bag while the person is still holding it, but Rice failed

to follow through and conduct a Thurlow analysis. Id. There is a split and

this needs to be decided.

The case cited by Nye, but cited improperly, further accentuates the

issue. State v. Carrawell, 841 S.W.3d 833 (Mo. 2016). In Missouri, it

appears that they have chosen the “time of the search” interpretation, where
the concurring opinion argues for the “time of the arrest.” While the
Missouri decision is opposite to the state of Washington Byrd decision, what
is important to note is that based upon the split decisions about this topic,
they upheld the search in the Missouri case as the officer is not to be left

high and dry while the courts are unable to agree. Id. at 846 citing Davis v.

United States, 564 U.S. 229 (2011).

As it applies to Nye’s case, while the officer testified that he would

have searched the bag at the scene, his normal practice, due to her behavior
_3-
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and his close proximity to the jail he put the bag in the trunk without
searching it and went to the jail. The reality is though, if Rice is really the
law in Nevada and not Thurlow, then Officer Ortiz, once he had handcuffed
the unruly Nye and reduced the bag to his or another officer’s possession
then no search of the bag is allowed, period. The bag could only be searched
after stating the words ‘you’re under arrest’ and then proceeding to search it
while Nye is free to move about. This makes no sense for officers or
arrestees. Such a ruling renders the “substantially contemporaneous with the
arrest” inquiries as to time and place meaningless, with the new inquiry from
Rice being whether at the time of the search could the person have reached
in there and gotten a weapon or destroyed evidence. Such a standard
overrules Robinson.

Ortiz’s actions were reasonable in light of Thurlow, and what appears
to be a recent split amongst courts who are presumptively more aware of the
law than he. Ortiz had zero intent to circumvent her 4™ amendment rights,
but rather initiated a weighing of his obligation to keep the peace and
remove her and proceed with protocol. Furthermore, with Thurlow still on

the books and not being addressed in Rice, and Rice not delineating any sort

of new rule, the officer was reasonable to conclude that to remove her to the

jail and conduct the search there would be substantially contemporaneous.
4.
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The state would suggest that these are reasonable actions given his
competing duties. This is not the heinous conduct that the Herring court is
looking for when it invokes the exclusionary rule. If there is an exigency
factor that should be considered it is due to the circumstances of the
Defendant’s behavior and this clearly should be viewed in the State’s favor.
Even if this is not deemed a valid search incident to arrest, Officer Ortiz’s
actions in this case were reasonable and the evidence should not be excluded

based upon Herring and Davis.

II.  Other issues raised by Nye — giving the bag to a friend; The inventory
search at the jail; Opaque items searched within the bag.

Nye continues to state that Nye should have been given the
opportunity to give her backpack to her friend, but admits there was no
friend present anywhere. Surely Nye isn’t suggesting that the police have an
obligation to taxi her around town to find a friend? The police are neither a
taxi service nor a package delivery service. The first case cited by Nye,

State v. Graham, 898 P.2d 1206 (Mont. 1995), has nothing to do with this

issue. The second case, United States v. Goodrich, 183 F. Supp. 2d 135 (D.

Mass. 2001), highlights the community caretaking doctrine, which Officer

Ortiz in this case followed by taking her belongings to the jail with her
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rather than leave them on the floor of the casino. Neither case stands for the
proposition that the police must look for the friend.

Once at the station, Officer Ortiz did search the backpack, in
accordance with the jail policy, as did Deputy Edgmond:

“a.  The sheriff or his designee will set forth a list of
items that an inmate will be allowed to keep in their possession
while in the facility.”

“k. If feasible, this accounting shall take place in the
presence of the officer bringing the inmate to the facility or some
other staff member.”

AA p. 192-193.

As so noted in the inventory policy, the language clearly indicates that they
are looking for items that cannot be kept at the facility, this was Officer
Ortiz’s job.

The officer calling it an inventory search does not change the legal
analysis. Officers are not lawyers. The nuances and exceptions regarding
the 4® Amendment case law are best reviewed by a court not during the |
tense situation on the side of the road or while dealing with an unruly
defendant. The Rice court even concedes as much by reviewing the case, on
its own initiative even though it wasn’t briefed on either issue, for both a

search incident to arrest and an inventory search when the officers clearly

state it was an inventory. Rice at 427, 430-431.

-6-
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Finally, searching a bag is no different than a container within a bag
and the officers have a duty to keep dangerous items out of an institution
like a jail. They did so and accounted, i.e. inventoried, that which was kept
at the jail, not what was seized and removed from the jail, in compliance
with the policy stating that “All property shall be inventoried and receipted.”
AA p. 192. This must necessarily include all containers. Much is made of
the inventory, but does Greenwald really stand for the proposition that in a
woman’s purse or bag an officer must include on the inventory the following
type of list: 1 tissue, 1 nail file, 1 eyeliner, 1 package of gum with 3 pieces
left in the package, 2 hair ties, 3 crumpled pieces of paper with the following
writing upon them... and on and on. An officer like Deputy Edgmond is
trying to keep items out of the jail as well as secure the inmate’s property. If
unallowed items are located they bring it to the attention of the arresting
officer and then inventory the item, as simply a bag. This should be
sufficient and is precisely the type of inventory that Greenwald suggested
she conduct if she is really conducting an inventory.

Deputy Edgmond did make an inventory of Nye’s things that were
kept in the jail storage bag at the jail while awaiting her release. The District

Court’s finding that the inventory at the jail, of the property to be stored
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there, was not a sufficient inventory to support a finding of inevitable
discovery was clearly erroneous and should be reversed.

CONCLUSION

To be clear what this court must decide is what guidance to give an
officer. Rice did not discuss Thurlow so clarification is needed. The United

States Supreme Court decisions Riley and Robinson suggest containers on or

near the person may be searched if it is substantially contemporaneous with
the arrest, time and place. It is impossible to search an item without reducing
it to police control away from the Defendant such that in every case under
the “time of the search” analysis searching an item will be deemed not a
search incident to arrest, in essence abolishing the search incident to arrest
rule as it applies to containers on or in the control of an arrestee. This can’t

be what the Supreme Court intended. Under Thurlow, the Rice officers

should have been able to search the backpack. Greenwald was totally
inapplicable because the motorcycle was not going to go with the officers in
the car ride to the jail and it is a place to be searched not a part of the person
as Robinson makes clear is permissible. An officer should be able to search
a bag carried by an arrestee prior to putting it in the car at the very least.
Alternatively, the exclusionary rule should not be applied due to the

reasonable efforts to remove her from the area based upon the Defendant’s
-8-
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behavior, the short delay that it caused and the inventory that was conducted

at the jail.