IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF Hectronically Filed Aug 14 2019 08:58 p.m. Elizabeth A. Brown Clerk of Supreme Court

)
THE STATE OF NEVADA,)
Appellant,))
) Supreme Crt No.: 78230
VS.) Dist. Crt. No. CR-FP-18-2614
KIMBERLY MARIE NYE,)))
Respondent.	,)

APPEAL FROM THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, HONORABLE ALVIN R. KACIN, PRESIDING

RESPONDENT'S ANSWERING BRIEF

DAVID D. LOREMAN, ESQ.

Bar No. 3867
445 Fifth Street, Suite 210
Elko, Nevada 89801
(775) 738-6606
Attorney for Defendant - Respondent

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

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Respondent in this matter agrees with the Supreme Court of Nevada in the cases of *Rice* and *Greenwald*. Respondent believes that the Honorable Judge Alvin R. Kacin reviewed the facts presented to him and made the necessary findings based on the observations made of the witnesses testimony both oral and documentary. That the demeanor as witnesses were being questioned by Counsel for the State and Ms. Nye gave him the insight as to the honest review of the actions of law enforcement in the present case. A critical component is the finding that Officer Ortiz "engaged in deliberate conduct" (App. 188) in violation of Nevada Case Law. In viewing this matter it would be hard to understand how 4 officers of the Elko Police Department could not search a bag at the scene. Nor could anyone of them truly even remember the "bag". It certainly did not make an impression on anyone of them during their contact with Ms. Nye. In looking at the testimony of the officers none of them could even remember really where it was at any particular time nor could any of them remember how Officer Ortiz got the "bag" to place it in the vehicle trunk. The problems are compounded by Officer

Ortiz in his testimony at the preliminary hearing when he claimed his search to be an inventory. Then at the motion hearing he now claims and stresses that he was not doing and inventory search that it was a search incident to arrest. The State in its Response did not even make an argument that it was an inventory search. Ms. Nye submits to this Court that the State is attempting to cover up an error of law enforcement in its argument. This position, aside from trying to justify Ortiz's actions, also claims that Nevada Supreme Court was wrong in its rulings in *Rice* and *Greenwald*. Consequently claiming that Judge Kacin was wrong for following those rulings. Eighteen of the cases cited by the State all preceded *Rice* in time. It is submitted by Ms. Nye that the State claims that the Nevada Supreme Court in **Rice** must have missed these cases or did not understand them in coming to there decision in *Rice* based on the State's appeal in this case and argument in its opening brief. Ms. Nye in this Answering Brief submits that the Nevada Supreme Court in *Rice* was a Court that certainly knew what it was doing and was aware of all the cases at the time.

Ultimately the Elko County Sheriff's Office did not follow its policy in its inventory or the existing case law in Nevada to provide for a legal inventory. It is also submitted that Ortiz did not do a search incident to arrest and the attempt of the State to claim it is such does not make common sense and is in-opposite to the usage of the English language and definitions, specifically "substantially contemporaneous".

Based on the law of *Rice* and the reasoning found in the Order of Judge

Kacin it is respectfully submitted that the Appeal of the State should be denied.

ARGUMENT

A. Issue One: The District Court properly concluded that the search of Nye's backpack at the jail was not proper as search incident to arrest.

The case is essentially on all fours with this issue is *Rice v. State*, 113 Nev. 425, 936 P.2d 319 (1997). In Judge Kacin's thoughtful and careful opinion he described the facts of Rice as follows:

"In *Rice*, a University of Nevada patrol sergeant stopped a suspect 'for not having a headlight or reflector on his bicycle.' The suspect 'immediately "escalated" his voice and became hostile'. Id. Further, the suspect 'was highly agitated, highly aggressive and demonstrated jerky movements[.] '[B]ased on past experience' the patrol sergeant felt the suspect 'was either looking for an escape route or a physical altercation.' Thinking the suspect might escape, the patrol sergeant 'asked him to step off his bicycle and remove his backpack because it appeared to have a heavy object in it.

"Just as the patrol sergeant started to pat the bag, he saw the suspect "move his right hand down. The patrol sergeant 'then saw "a bulk and distinctive outline" of a Derringer in one of the suspect's pockets. The peace officer responded in part by handcuffing the suspect and taking the firearm.

"Another officer arrived after the suspect was arrested for operating a

bicycle without a headlight and carrying a concealed weapon. After the patrol sergeant put the suspect in a patrol car, the other officer 'walked over, got the backpack, [and] opened it to check it to make sure there was no further contraband.' In the backpack, the peace officers 'found money, two bullets, and what they thought to be drugs and drug paraphernalia. Apparently, the patrol sergeant maintained the pair 'were attempting the conduct an inventory on the scene.' " *App.* 185-86 (citing *Rice*, 113 Nev. at 427)(individual citations omitted).

Then relying on Rice to find that to hold that Ortiz' search was not a valid search incident to arrest the District Court declared:

"The district court in *Rice* denied a motion to suppress the firearm and the evidence found in the backpack. *Id.* at 426. The Nevada Supreme Court effectively affirmed the denial of the motion to suppress the firearm, but reversed the decision on not suppressing the contraband in the backpack. Relying primarily on [*State v.*] *Greenwald* [109 Nev. 808 (1993)], the *Rice* court concluded that the search of the backpack was neither a search incident to arrest nor an inventory. *Id.* at 430-31. In *Greenwald*, the court held that the search of the suspect's motorcycle after he 'was safely locked away in a police car was not a valid search incident to arrest because there was no conceivable need to disarm him or prevent him from concealing or destroying evidence. *Id.* at 430 (citing *Greenwald*, 109 Nev. at 810). As in *Rice*, '[t]he same is true in this case.' Nye was placed in a police car and then given to a booking deputy before Ortiz searched the backpack. In other

words, like the suspect in *Rice*, Nye was safely under law enforcement control before her backpack was searched. 'Thus, under *Greenwald*, the backpack was not validly searched incident to arrest.'" *App*. 186. Note too that the level of commotion caused by Nye seems less than threatening than that discussed in *Rice* and apparently occurred in a closed space with more law enforcement personnel present. Judge Kacin did understand that in both *Rice* and the present case the officers were confronted with a person that was not being cooperative. This issue was not a factor in the ultimate determination of the Court as it was consistent in both the present case and *Rice*. *App*. 183 and *App*. 185

Contrariwise, the Appellant, inter alia, appears to argue that the *United*States v. Chadwick, 433 U.S. 1, 15 (1977) language "that warrantless searches of luggage or other property seized at the time of arrest cannot be justified as incident to that arrest . . . if the search is remote in time or place from the arrest" should mean that since the Elko jail was only .7 miles from the spot of the arrest it was not remote in place. See Appellant Brief at 16-17. This is foolish; being transported from a place where one is at liberty to one where trespassers are strip searched is remote in the sense of having very little connection or relationship with the prior place. It is thoroughly dissimilar although coincidentally nearby.

Similarly, the Appellant argues in part that the place is not "remote" since
Ortiz was standing five or six feet from Nye when he began his search. Again the
logic is nonsense. First, this was the position Ortiz apparently chose when Nye

was secured and being booked at the jail. Second, merely because an officer later places a container near the arrestee when he searches it does not convert a search into a search incident. Indeed at that point it is he who is creating any justification of the search as incident. This is clearly wrong. See United States v. Perea, 986 F.2d 633, 636, 643 (2d Cir. 1993)(placing bag in police vehicle near arrested defendant did not make its search incident to arrest); United States v. Rothman, 492 F.2d 1260, 1265 (9th Cir. 1974)(bringing baggage to arrested defendant did not make its search incident to arrest); United States v. Rigales, 630 F.2d 364, 366-67 (5th Cir. 1980)(police could not open heavy zippered bag found in automobile incident to a warrant arrest of a person who had bullets in his jacket); See Also United States v. Monclavo-Cruz, 662 F.2d 1285, 1286-88 (9th Cir. 1981)(search of purse with arrested defendant being questioned an hour afterward at station house not search incident to arrest).

Appellant also argues that the careful and thoughtful tests of *United States v. Knapp*, 917 F.3d 1161, 1168-69 (10th Cir. 2019) including (1) whether the person is handcuffed; (2) numbers of officers and arrestees; (3) relative positions of officers, arrestees and the place itself; and (4) ease or difficulty with which arrestee could gain axis to the searched area are too onerous in contrast to merely recalling whether the person was in possession of the item at the time of arrest. This is somewhat ironic inasmuch as testimony of all of the police officers at the hearings varied as to the location of the backpack or if it even existed but varied little as to

the *Knapp* factors. *Knapp* wisely focused on *Arizona v. Gant*, 556 U.S. 332, 343-44 (2009) and determined that whether "at the time of the search" the arrestee had the capability to access weapons or destroy evidence was the primary inquiry. *Knapp*, *Supra* at 1168 (emphasis added in Knapp). The *Knapp* court then ruled that a zipped shut purse an officer had removed three or four chairs away from her, was not in her immediate control when the handcuffed Ms. Knapp when it was placed on the hood of a police car. *Knapp*, *Supra* at 1164. The prosecution argued unsuccessfully that this was proper under search incident and inevitable discovery. This was the holding despite the handcuffed Knapp's admission under interrogation that the purse contained a gun. *Knapp*, *Supra* at 1164, 1166-70.

Indeed the Appellant's argument that *Knapp* curtails officer safety does not apply to this case since Ortiz' safety can scarcely be much of an issue when he has successfully brought his handcuffed arrestee to the jail and subsequently with cuffs, shoes and belts, etc., removed she was being booked. Note also that *Knapp* and another case cited by the Appellant, *Byrd v. State*, 310 P.3d 791 (Wash. 2012), are actually in harmony with respect to the location of the container issue. The Byrd opinion basically hangs its hat on the fact since the purse was on the defendant's lap, thus being removed "from her person" at the time of her arrest, it could be searched incident. *Id.* at 798-99.

Appellant also attempts to argue that the "roughly contemporaneous" language of certain Ninth Circuit cases make this a valid search incident despite

cases like *Rice* and *Knapp* or even a commonsense use of the definition of "contemporaneous". These cases are distinguishable from *Knapp* based on the notion that the item searched must have been in the arrestee's control at the time of arrest. See Also United States v. Camou, 773 F.3d 932. 942-43 (9th Cir. 2014) (cell phones are not containers for vehicular search after arrest). Much as the "remote" analysis above is not really dependent on distance, so too "roughly contemporaneous" analysis should not be contingent upon the distance between arrest site and place of incarceration, but this is the argument of the *Appellant's* **Brief** at 17-18--including the notion that a vast schism exists between the Ninth and Tenth Circuits on the Routing Statement issue of whether "time of arrest" versus "time of the search." See also Appellant's Brief at 2 (Routing Statement). This sleight of hand argument ignores the *Knapp* focus on accessibility and possible destruction; contrariwise these factors appear to be wisely considered in Judge Kacin's opinion. Instead, the Appellant's argument would make "roughly contemporaneous" standard dependent on the luckiness or unluckiness of proximity to the incarcerating facility. The absurdity of this argument is perhaps most clear in a county like Elko which has an overall area over twice the size of New Jersey.

In truth, *Rice* and the instant case represents a logical line of search incident analysis in Nevada. As noted in the Appellee's Routing Statement and the Appellant Brief Nevada law preceding *Rice* can be summarized from the

Supreme Court found that "A search can be incident to arrest 'only if it is substantially contemporaneous with the arrest and is confined to the immediate vicinity of the arrest . . . This right to search and seize without a search warrant extends to the thing under the accused's immediate control." *See Appellant Brief* at 15.

The second quote is from *Scott v. State*, 86 Nev. 145, 147 (1970): "Once an accused is under arrest and in custody, then a search made at another place, without a warrant, is simply not incident to the arrest.' It is apparent that the search in the instant matter was not incident to Scott's arrest, since it was remote in time and place from his arrest." *See Appellant Brief* at 16.

Clearly, Judge Kacin's Order comports with *Scott* and *Thurlow* besides *Rice*. In all, the remoteness and contemporaneous arguments only support *Rice*, *Scott*, and *Thurlow*. Moreover, not only did Ortiz not make a valid search incident to arrest at the jail but clearly he didn't even think he was doing so at the time.

Additionally, many of the cases Appellant has cited for allowing search incident after the item is seized and the arrestee is handcuffed, *Appellant's Brief* at 13, are distinguishable from the instant case. For example *United States v*.

Nelson, 102 F.3d 1344, 1346-47 (4th Cir. 1996) allows such a search incident when the search was at the scene and the delay was reasonable. Here the second but not the first applies. In *United States v. Morales*, 923 F.2d 621, 622 (8th Cir 1990), the

defendant was arrested but not handcuffed when his bags were searched about three feet away from him. In *United States v. Herrera*, 810 F.2d 989, 990 (10th Cir. 1987) authorities surveilling the defendant had seen him take a letter with a tracking device enclosed, placed it in a briefcase, then walk towards his car so they knew the evidence was in the briefcase.

This search made in another place without a warrant while the arrestee was being booked and was essentially without access to the container was not incident to the arrest.

B. Issue Two: Inevitable discovery does not apply.

Again Judge Kacin's opinion is right on point. Although noting that despite Deputy Edgmond's normal procedure left "little doubt that Edgmond inevitably would have discovered both quantities of methamphetamine and the pipe in Nye's backpack had Ortiz not searched it first. However, the court cannot conclude that the contraband would have been found in a *lawful* inventory." *App.* 187 (emphasis original).

Thus, the District Court was correct to conclude that the deputy failed to produce an actual inventory of the search of the backpack and hence concluded correctly that "'Without an inventory, we can have no inventory search.'

Greenwald, Supra. at 811. For that reason alone, the court must conclude that Edgmond would not have inevitably discovered the methamphetamine and pipe in a lawful inventory search." App. 187 (emphasis original).

Also on point is *Bailey v. State*, 2016 Nev. Unpub. LEXIS 801. In *Bailey*, the Nevada Supreme Court has ruled that an item may not be part of an inventory search when it is not on the arrestee at the time of arrest—as was the case hereand the arrestee did not ask for the item. *Bailey* at 1.

For other cases analogous to why inevitability does not apply here: *See State v. Warren* 37 P.3d 270, 274-75 (Utah App. 2001) (cannot assume inevitability of finding contraband in vehicle simply because it was going to be impounded); *See Also United States v. Warren*, 152 F.3d 1034, 1040 (8th Cir. 1998)(exploitation of illegal entry to premises did not support notion that warrant would be granted inevitably); cf. *United States v. Keszthelyi*, 308 F.3d 557, 571-72 (6th Cir. 2002)(second search not inevitable when first search warrant had terminated); *Rodriguez v. State*, 187 So. 3d 841, 849-50 (Fla. 2015)(must at least be seeking a search warrant to argue inevitability of illegal search); *Lee v. State*, 774 A.2d 1183, 1192-93 (Md. App. 2001)(improper no knock clause in search warrant precluded inevitability).

<u>C. Issue Three</u>: The District Court found correctly that suppression was the proper remedy for deliberate conduct in violation of *Rice* and *Greenwald*.

Judge Kacin correctly and succinctly found that the exclusionary rule applied. He declared that: "Given the longstanding rule of *Greenwald* and *Rice*, the court is not persuaded by the prosecution's argument that '[a]pplication of the exclusionary rule is unwarranted' here. Ortiz indeed engaged in deliberate conduct

in violation of Greenwald and Rice that is worthy of deterrence. *See Herring v. United States*, 555 U.S. 135, 144 (2009)(exclusionary rule applies to 'deliberate, reckless, or grossly negligent conduct, or in some circumstances recurring or systemic negligence,' not every error that occurs). The pipe and the two quantities of methamphetamine must be suppressed." *App.* 188.

This seems particularly apt when Ortiz' rationale for the search appears, which was initially in his report and preliminary hearing testimony, that this was an inventory search. He apparently only changed to justifying it as a search incident to arrest when that was how the prosecution below framed its response to the initial motion to suppress. See App. 107-12 (Opposition to Motion to Suppress not even arguing an inventory by Ortiz). Appellant seems now to argue that Ortiz was acting on something like "good faith" on federal precedent, but how much good faith can you have when you apparently change your "inventory" to "search incident" only after the prosecutor subsequently frames his arguments that way, and where your controlling law is *Rice*? Clearly it is absurd to believe that Ortiz was relying on federal precedent. Similarly how much "good faith" can buttress a booking inventory consisting of a "bag" in a state that knows of its own precedent of *Greenwald* and *Weintraub v. State*, 110 Nev. 287, 288-89, 871 P.2d 339 (1994) (listing only 8 items and not listing over a hundred was improper inventory)?

<u>D. Issue Four</u>: There are other alternative reasons that this was not a valid search incident to arrest.

a. The backpack was apparently out of Nye's control both before and after Ortiz seized it.

Either alternative suffices to negate a search incident to arrest analysis. See State v. Carrawell, 481 S.W.2d 833 (Mo. 2016). In Carrawell, an officer was arresting a man carrying a plastic bag for his gestures and swearing disturbing the peace of those around him. The man attempted to enter a door and the policeman grabbed hold of him, telling him to drop the bag as he attempted to handcuff him. Eventually when the policeman ripped the bag from Carrawell's hands it fell to the ground with a breaking sound. The officer secured the arrestee in his car then went back and searched the bag, finding a broken plate and a smaller plastic bag containing heroin. The court ruled that since the bag was not within the area of the arrestee's control this was not a valid search incident to arrest but that since there was precedent that supported allowing this search at the time it occurred the search occurred in good faith. *Id.* at 838-46. In finding the search not incident to arrest, the court noted that the *United States v. Edwards*, 415 U.S. 800, 803 (1974) "exception to the general rule allowing the item to be within the immediate control applies only to items that are so entwined with the arrestee's person that they cannot be separated from the person at the time of arrest." Carrawell, Supra. at 840. Obviously, the backpack was separated from Ms. Nye at the time of arrest and quite likely before it and even if taken from her, Ortiz could not search it then nor take it with him then much later perform a search incident to arrest. See

People v. Morales, 2 N.Y.S.3d 472, 473-76 (A.D. 2015)(when defendant arrested and his jacket under control of police and on a vehicle's trunk, search of jacket was not search incident); *People v. Julio*, 666 N.Y.S.2d 171, 172 (A.D. 1997)(search of bag not incident to arrest where bag in possession of officer, and defendant who had abandoned ammunition clip was handcuffed); *People v. Wilcox*, 22 N.Y.S.3d 717, 718-20 (A.D. 2015)(even where pill bottle containing suspected heroin fell from jacket while arresting defendant, subsequent search after arrest, removal of cuffs to get jacket off, re-cuffing, and securing jacket in another room not search incident) (state const.).

b. Search incident analysis also supports allowing Nye to give the backpack to her friend.

Under search incident analysis, Ortiz was wrong to prevent Nye from giving the backpack to her friend. *See State v. Graham*, 898 P.2d 1206, 1207-08 (Mont. 1995). In Graham, the defendant, who was passenger in vehicle stopped and arrested on a warrant, asked to leave her purse in the vehicle--which neighbor was retrieving-- because the purse contained food stamps her children would need. Police took the purse to the police station anyway and inventoried it finding drugs. The drugs were not admissible as a search incident to arrest because the search was not relevant to the warrants, would not have prevented an escape, and did not protect the arresting officer. *See also United States v. Goodrich*, 183 F. Supp. 2d 135, 137, 140-45 (D. Mass 2001)(whether an appropriate person is available to

move vehicle factor in decision to tow; wife of defendant who would take car from parking lot constituted an appropriate situation to release vehicle rather than tow it; towing policy should be written). Although Ortiz indicated he did not see such a person, it seems clear Nye should have been given the chance to point out the friend since (1) police had been summoned to a disturbance by three people and (2) however much disturbance Nye had caused she was merely being [citizen] arrested for trespassing. Allowing her to give the backpack to a friend also makes sense since Ortiz stressed that part of the reason he would not allow her to do it was because of possible accusations of theft. Clearly, these are far more likely if he takes the backpack.

Thus, again the search of the backpack by Ortiz cannot be justified under search incident to arrest analysis.

E. Issue Five: Alternatively, Ortiz' search of Nye's backpack can be found to be an invalid inventory search.

a. The inventory by Ortiz was improper.

Had the District Court taken Ortiz at his original and preliminary hearing stance that this was a valid inventory search that search would have still been illegal under *Rice*. In *Rice*, after one officer then "walked over, got the backpack, [and] opened it to check to make sure there was no further contraband," *Id.* at 427, the Nevada Supreme Court found that the search was not valid as an inventory search since the officer admitted he was looking for contraband and because there

was no indication that a formal inventory was prepared at the time of Rice's arrest.

Id. at 430-31. This took place in the present case in both instances with Ortiz falsely claiming doing an inventory and producing no inventory and Deputy Edgmond admits to be looking for contraband and in the written inventory is a "bag".

Also on point is *Bailey v. State* 2016 Nev. Unpub. LEXIS 801. In *Bailey*, the Nevada Supreme Court has ruled that an item may not be part of an inventory search when it is not on the arrestee at the time of arrest—as was the case hereand the arrestee did not ask for the item. *Bailey* at 1.

Likewise, here as in *Rice*, Ortiz did no formal inventory of what he characterized as an inventory search and admitted that he was in part looking for contraband. Indeed, even when an inventory record lacks specific entries to show it is for the protection of property contraband found will be suppressed. *State v. Greenwald*, 109 Nev. 808, 858 P.2d 36 (1993)(inventory was ruse and contraband suppressed when found hidden in a zippered toiletry case and quantities of noncontraband items found were not listed); e.g., *Weintraub v. State*, 110 Nev. 287, 288-89, 871 P.2d 339 (1994)(listing only 8 items and not listing over a hundred was improper inventory); *Accord United States v. Taylor*, 636 F.3d 461, 464-66 (8th Cir 2011)("misc. tools" for hundreds of them plus testimony that would not have arrested and impounded but for belief that narcotics crime evidence would be found improper): *United States v. Reed*, 2018 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 94483 at 19-20

(need to comply with inventory procedures; failure to document inventory made search invalid); State v. Stauder, 264 S.W.3d 360, 361-65 (Tex. App. 2008)(failure to comply with inventory procedures by failing to prepare inventory list rendered search of vehicle improper); See United States v. Vernon, 511 Fed. Appx. 318, 322-23 (5th Cir. 2013)(failure to show compliance with inventory policy led to suppression); *United States v. Hope*, 102 F.3d 114, 116-17 (5th Cir. 1996)(Texas officer saying Memphis police did inventory insufficient to prove Memphis procedure followed); United States v. Monclavo-Cruz, 662 F.2d 1285, 1286-89 (9th Cir. 1981)(search of purse with arrested defendant being questioned an hour afterward at station house not search incident to arrest or justified as inventory); State v. Hamilton, 67 P.3d 871, 876-79 (Mont. 2003) (where lost wallet apparently contained identification and check book clearly visible opening coin purse and taking inventory though none was recorded was invalid search)(state const.); See Also United States v. Caskey, 2013 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 1167 at 4-14 (failure to show that search complied with inventory policy when list did not comply with noting valuables but rather with evidence likely valuable to kidnaping investigation); State v. Baylor, 860 N.W.2d 924, (Iowa Ct. App. 2014) ("In the context of an inventory search, the government must produce evidence that the impoundment and the inventory search procedures were in place and that law enforcement complied with those procedures. United States v. Kennedy, 427 F.3d 1136, 1144 (8th Cir.2005)."); See Also, e.g., United States v. Judge, 846 F.2d 274,

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